
UNITED STATES ENVI ONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
, REGION III :
I '

" 1650 Arch Street I
Philadelphi.l, Pennsylv,ania 19103-2029

i

PS, Next Day Air

Mr. mison Austin
Vice President and General Manager
Che solv, Inc., formerly trading as
Che icals and Solvents, Inc.
1140 Industry Avenue, S.E.
Roa ke. VA 24013

MAR 3 1 2011

G. Harris Warner, Jr.
Registered Agent for
Austin Holdings-VA, L.L.C
4648 Brambleton Ave., SW
Roanoke, Va. 24018

s L. Williams, Esq.
Gent , Locke, Rakes & Moore
800 un Trust Plaza
10 Fr klin Road
Roan ke, VA 24011

Re: IMO Chemsolv, Inc.
EPA ID No. VAD98072I 0 8

Dear IfS:

I
Respondents must each file an Ans er to the Administrative Complaint within thirty (30)

days receipt of the Administrative Com~laint in accordance with the 'Consolidated Rules of
Practi'e Governing the Administrative As~r.ssment ofCivil Penalties. Issuance oj Compliance or
Corre live Action Orders. and t~e Revocat1ion. Termination or Su~pension ofPermits, "40 CF.R.

Part 2]. ! I
I I

Each Respondent may choose to re uest a hearing to contest any matter set forth in the
Admi istrative Complaint. Whether or notl a hearing is requested, 'each Respondent may request
an inl' rmal settlement conference to diSCU

t
resolution of any of these cases. A request for a

settle em conference may be included in e ch Respondent's Answer or each Respondent may
contac the staff attorney assigned to this c se: I

, I

l I
I

Enclosed please find an Administr tivc Complaint filed the United States
Envir mmental Protection Agency, Region III (EPA) against Chemsolv, Inc., formerly trading as
Chem cals and Solvents, Inc., and Austin oldings-VA, L.L.C (collectively "Respondents")
under he authority 00008(a)(1) and (g) 0 the Resource Conserv~tionand Recovery Act of
1976, 2 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(1) and (g).



Joyce A. Howell (3ECOO)
Senior Counsel 'I

Office of Regional Counsel
C.S. EPA, Region III
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

II I

With regard to Small Business Regulatory Enforcement and Fairness Act (SBREFA)
see the "Information for ,Small Businesses" memo, enclosed, which might be applicable to
Respondent's company. ,This enclosure provides information on contacting the SBREFA
dsman to comment on federal enforcement and compliance activities and also provides
ation on compliance assi'stance. As noted in the enclosure'! any decision to participate in
rogram or to seek compliance assistance does not relieve either Respondent of its

oblig tion to respond in a timely manner to an EPA request or other enforcement action, create
any r ghts or defenses under law, and will not affect EPA's decision to pursue this enforcement
actio . In order for each Respondent to preserve its legal rights, it must comply with all the rules
gove ing the administrative en'forcement process. The Ombuds~an and fairness boards do not
parti ipate in the resolution of EPA's enforcement action. EPA has not made a determination as
to w ther or not either Respondent is covered by SBREFA. A Notice of Securities and
Exch ge Commission Registrants' Duty to Disclose Environmehta\ Legal Procedures is also
enelo cd. I \

I I

We urge your prompt attention to this matter. If you hav~ any questions, please contact
,

Joyc Howell, the attorney assigned to this matter, at (215) 814-2644.

\

Sincerely, I

~~~
/) AbraHam Ferdas II I¥ Director

Land and Chemicals Division
U.S. EPA Region IIII

Enclo ures

cc: L dia Guy, Regional Hearing Clerk
J . ce A. Howell, Esq., EPAi

\



BEFORE I HE UNITED STATJ):S
ENVIRONMEN AL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION III

In th Matter of:

I
CHE SOLV, INC., formerly tradlllg as
Che icals and Solvents, Inc.

and

AUS
I

IN HOLDlNGS-VA, L.L(

I

I

I
ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT,
COMPLIANCE ORDER AND
NOTICE OF; OPPORTUNITY FOR
A HEARING

. J

Respondents.

Che solv, Inc.
1111 ndustrial Avenue, S.E
1140 ndustrial Avenue, S.E
Roan ke, Virginia 24013

Facility

I

Proceeding uflder Section 3008(a)
of the Resource Conservation and

I

Recovery Ac!, as amended, 42 U.S.C.
Section 6928(a)

i

I. INTlg9DUCTION

I

I

This Administrative Co~plaint, C mpliance Order and N~tice of Opportunity for Hearing
("Co plaint") is issued pursuant to the aut ority vested in the Adll1inistrator of the United States
Envir nrnental Protection Agency ("EPA" r the "Agt:ncy") by Se~tion 3008(a)(l) and (g) of the
Resou ce Conservation and Recovery Act f 1976, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(I) and (g), as amended
by, in r alia, the Hazardous and Solid Walite Amendments of 1984 ("RCRA"), and the
Conso idated Rules of Practice Governing lhe Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties,
Issuan e of Compliance and Corrective Action Orders and the Revocation, Termination or
Suspe sion of Permits ("Consolidated RUl9s ofPractice"), 40 C.F.R. Part 22. The AdmInistrator
of EP has delegated this authority under CRA to the Regional Administrators of EPA, and this
authority has been further delegated in U.S EPA - Region III to, inter alia, the Director of the
Land d Chemicals Division, U.S. EPA - egion III ("Complainant"). The Respondents in this

I
I

I
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i

II

matt rare Chemsolv, Inc., fOIl1?erly tradi g as Chemicals and SQlvents. Inc., ("Chemsolv") and
Aust n Holdings - VA, L.L.c. ("Austin Holdings"). This action Concerns Chemsolv's and Austin
Hoi ings' facility located in Rqanoke, Vi~ginia.

!

EPA hereby notifies Re'spondents that EPA has determined that Respondents have violated
cert n provisions of Subtitle c' of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. §§ 6921-693ge, and the Commonwealth of
Virg nia's federally authorized hazardous waste management pr~gram.

I 1

On December 18, 1984; pursuant 0 Section 3006(b) of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6926(b), and
40 C F.R. Part 271, Subpart A,'Virginia ~as granted final author:.ization to administer a state
haza dous waste management program in lieu of the federal hazardous waste management
prog am established under RCRA Subtitl C, 42 U.S.c. §§ 6921f693ge. The authorized Virginia
haza dous waste management program ("~HWMP") was revised, effective September 29, 2000
(see 5 Fed Reg. 46606 (July 31,2000)) June 20, 2003 (see 68 Fed Reg. 36925 (June 20,
200 ), July 10,2006 (see 71 Fed Reg. 21216 (May 10,2006)) 4nd July 30, 2008 (see 73 Fed
Reg. 44168 (July 30, 2008)). The curren~provisions of the VHV{MP ("2003 VHWMP") are
enfo ceable by EPA pursuant to. Section i008(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. Section 6928(a).

ill
The 2003 VHWMP, with excepti~ns not rel,:vant to this matter, incorporates by reference

the deral hazardous waste regulations as set forth in the July 1,:2001 Code of Federal
Reg lations. Citations in this Complaint Ito the 2003 VHWMP will set forth the appropriate
fede al regulation as well as thJ Virginia provision which incorpbrates such federal regulation by

refer nee. I! I'

! 1

EPA has given the Commonwealth of Virginia prior notice of the issuance of this
Co laint in accordance with Section 30t8(a)(2) of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6928(a)(2).

. I

II. ! ADMIN STRATIVE COMPLAINT
, I
, I

Fin~ings of F cts and Conclusions of Law

! 1

I. The United States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") and EPA's Office of
Ad inistrative Law Judges have jurisdic ion over this matter pu~suant to RCRA Section 3008, 42
U.S.. § 6928, and the Consoliidated RUlf of Practice (40 C.F'j' §§ 22. I(a)(4) and 22.4(c)).

I ,

2. Respondents are "persons" as defi ed in Section I004( 15) of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. Section
690 (15), and 9 VAC 20-60-260.A, whic incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 260.10 with
exce, tions not relevant herein. i ~I I

I i

3. Respondent Chemsolv is and, at 1times relevant to the ,violations alleged in this
Co laint, was the "owner" and "operato "ofa "facility" located on Tax Parcel 4240104 of the
City f Roanoke which constitutes a portion of the Facility locatbd at 1111 and 1140 Industry

, ,

Ave ue, S.E., in Roanoke, Virginia ("th:~ Facility"), as those terms are defined in 9 VAC 20-60-
,

I

I
,



I

260. ,which incorporates by riference 4 C.F .R. § 260.10 with ixceptions not relevant herein.

. I

4. Respondent Austin Holdings is an , at all times relevant io the violations alleged in this
Com laint, was the "owner" o(a "facility' located on Tax Parcel~ 4170 I 02 and 4240 I 03 of the
City I·of Roanoke which constit~tes a porti n of the Facility, as thhse terms are deiined in 9 VACt' , ,
20-6 -260.A, which incorporates by refer nce 40 C.F.R. § 260.10 with exceptions not relevant
herei . I I

I I
5. Respondent Chemsolv is, and was at all times relevant to Ithis Complaint, a "generator" of

I

"haz dous waste," as described below, a~the Facility, as those terms are defined at 9 VAC 20-60-
260. which incorporates by reference 4~ C.F.R. § 260.10 with dxceptions not relevant herein

6. On May 15,2007, EPA.! accompa~ied by representatives ~fthe Virginia Department of
Envi onmental Quality ("VADEQ"), conducted an inspection at the Facility.

7. On May 23, 2007, EPA look sarndles at certain locations ~ithin the Facility.

8. On May 15, 18, and 23, 12007 rep~Lentatives ofVADEQ ~onducted inspections at the

FKilty. I I. .
9. On November 16, 2007. EPA sent Respondent Chemsolv'an mfom1atlOn request letter

I

purs nt to Section 3007(a) of~CRA. 42 U.S.c. § 6927(a). Respondent Chemsolv replied to this
info ation request by letter dated Decem er 10, 2007. .

10. On February 4, 2008, E~A sent R~spondent Chemsolv an 'information request letter
purs nt to Section 3007(a) of RCRA. 42 p.S.C. § 6927(a). Respondent Chemsolv replied to this
infoTation request by letter February 6, 3008. I

i I

II. On April I, 2008, EPA ;ent Respohdent Chernsolv an inf~rmation request letter pursuant
to Se tion 3007(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § b927(a). Respondent Chemsolv replied to this

, ,

infor ation request by letter daled April 4, 2008. I

. I I

12. Respondent Chemsolv purchases and repackages chemicals, and also blends chemicals at
the F cility which are sUbseque~tly packa~ed Respondent Chemsolv then sells and distributes
chern cals. chemical intermedia~ies, and scllvents. I

13. The Facility is assigned ~PA ID Nl. VAD980721088. !

! r I

14.. At the time of the May 23, 2007 EFA inspection, EPA took samples of water contained in
a sub rade "tank," located on the. Tax par~e14240104 portion of the Facility, which, at the time of
the re evant violations alleged herein, was a "new tank system" a~ that term is deiined at 9 VAC

. I

20-60 260A, which incorporate, by referell

l

ce 40 C.F.R § 2601.10
1

, identified by Respondent

i I 3
I
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,

I
I

Che solv as the "Pit" ("Pit"). The analys s of the May 23, 2007 Pit water sample, using the TCLP
desc, ibed in 40 C.F.R. § 261.2~ (incorpOjated by reference in 9 ~AC 20-60-261), indicated the
Pit , ter contained 6.1 mglL ciloroform. I

, ,

15.' Solid waste with a conc!"ntration f 6.0 mglL chloroform :or greater is a hazardous waste
(D02 ) pursuant to 9 VAC 20-60-261, wHich incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 261.24 with
exce tions not relevant herein, because it bXhibits the characteristic of "toxicity" for chloroform.

, I I" I

• I I ,

16.: At the time of the May 23, 2007 EPA inspection, EPA took samples of sludge from the
Pit. he analysis of the May 23) 2007 Pit kludge sample, using th~ TCLP described in 40 C.F.R.
§ 26 .24 (incorporated by refer~nce in 9 rAC 20-60-261), indicated the Pit sludge contained 457
mgl tetrachloroethene and IS.? mglL triehloroethene. I

I I r I17. Solid waste with a concentration 0 .7 mglL tetrachloroetJ,1ene or greater is a hazardous
wast (D039) pursuant to 9 VAC 20-60-2 I.A, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R.
§ 261.24 with exceptions not relevant herrI in, becaus,e it exhibits lhe characteristic of "toxicity" for
tetra, loroethene. I I

' I

18.: Solid waste with a concentration 0 .5 mglL or greater trichloroethene is a hazardous waste't '(D04 ) pursuant to 9 VAC 20-60-26I.A, hich incorporates by r!"ference 40 C.F.R. § 261.24 with
exce tions not relevant herein, because it xhibits th,~ characteristic of "toxicity" for

trichl roethene. 'I ( I

I I

19. At the time of the May 23, 2007 E A inspection, EPA took samples of the sludge from the
Pit., he analysis of the May 23, 2007 Pit!lUdge sample indicated the Pit sludge contained a
volati e organic ("VO") concentration of reater than 500 parts p~r million by weight.

, I' I
, I

20. ' Respondent Chemsolv cleaned out the Pit on or around February I, 2008, removed the Pit,
a sin e-walled subgrade tank c~nstructed lof carbon steel with a deramic interior coating, and
filled, he opening with gravel o~ or about March 27, 2008. II

I I 1
21. The Pit water and Pit sludge referr d to aboYe', are and weie, at the time of the EPA and
VAD Q inspections referred to 'above, "sdlid wastes" as that terill is defined at 9 VAC 20-60
260. ,which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 260.10, and thus "hazardous wastes" as that
term i' defined at 9 VAC 20-60c260.A, wllich incorporates by ref~rence 40 C.F.R. § 260.10.

, I I I

22. ' 9 VAC 20-60-261.A, which incorperates by r'eference 40 C.F.R. § 261.5 with exceptions
not re evant herein, provides in relevant P'lrt, that a g,~nerator is a ponditionally exempt small
quant generator in a calendar month ifht generates no more than 100 kilograms of hazardous
waste in that month. I I

, I I

' I '

23. 9 VAC 20-60-26I.A, which incorp rates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 261.5(g)(l) and (2),
provi es, in pertinent part, that i~, order fOl' hazardous waste gener~ted by a conditionally exempt

I I
I 4 II

I



I
I

II

,

sma I quantity generator in quantitie~ n I' 00 kilogmms or less of hazardous waste during a
cale dar month to be excluded from full egulation under 9 VAC 20-60-262.A, the generator must
com ly with 9 VAC 20-60-261 .A, which incorporates 40 C.F.R.i § 262.1 1 by reference.

24. 9 VAC 20-60-261.A, JhiCh inco orates by reference 4J C.F .R. § 261.5(g)(2), provides
that f a conditionally exempt imall quan ity generator accumulates at any time 1,000 kilograms or
grea er ofhis hazardous wastei, all of th9se accumulated wastes !are subject to regulation under
the ecial provisions of 40 C.F.R Part 2F applicable to generat'ors of greater than 100 kg and
less han 1000 kg of hazardous' waste in a calendar month (hereiri referred to as a "small quantity
gen ator") as well as the requirements of 40 C.F.R. Parts 263 through 268, and 40 C.F.R. Parts
270 nd 124, and the applicable notificatlon requirements of to Section 3010 ofRCRA, 42 U.S.C.
§ 69 O. The time period of 40 ~.F.R. § 2f2.34(d) for accumulation of wastes on-site begins for a
con 'tionally exempt small quantity genrator when the accumulated wastes equal or exceed 1000
kilo rams. I I

\ ,

25. Upon information and belief, Res ondent accumulated 1,,000 kilograms (2,200 lbs.) of
haza dous waste or more at the Facility a' one time from March 15,2007 through and including
Febr ary 20, 2008. 'I

,

i

COUNT I I

(0 ing andlor operating a hazardous aste storage facility without a permit or interim status)

26. T'" p=,d;0' ""''''''+= ;0"\"""""' by,,",,,= I
27. Pursuant to 9 VAC 20-60-270.A. which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. Part 270 with
exce tions not relevant herein, and Sectiof 3005(a) and (e) ofR~RA, 42 U.s.C. § 6925(a) and
(e), person may not own or operate a hal':ardous waste storage, treatment or disposal facility
unle such person has first obtained a pebit for the: facility or has qualified for interim status for
the fi cility. I I

I ,
, ,

28. 9 VAC 20-60-262.A, which incofJ!Jorates by reference 40 ;C.F.R. § 262.34(d) with
exce tions not relevant herein, provides i* relevant part, that a small quantity generator of
haza ous waste may accumulate hazardo~s waste on-site for 18q days or less without a permit or
with ut interim status, provided that the sinal! quantity generator'meets a number of conditions,
inclu ing in relevant part: I! I I

i I !

(I) when the waste is placld in tanks, the generator complies with 40 C.F.R.
§ 265.20 I, whie!) is incorporated by reference into' 9 VAC 20-60-262.A;

(2) the date upo~ which eJh period of aceumulati~nbegins is clearly marked and
visible for inspeition on eafh containl~r; and I

(3) while being ~,ccumulat~d on-site each container and tank is labeled or marked

I! 5 I



clearly with the words "H zardous Waste."

29. 40 C.F.R. § 265.201, ~ith exceJtions not applicable to fhis matter, provides that small
quan ity generators who accumulate hazaidous wast,~ in tanks must inspect, where present: (I)
Disc arge control equipment (~.g., waste feed cutoff systems, by!pass systems, and drainage
syste s) at least once each ope~ating dayJto ensure that it is in gpod working order; (2) Data
gathired from monitoring equipment (e.gl. pressure and temperature gauges) at least once each
opel' ting day to ensure that the: tank is be'ing operat(:d according 'to its design; (3) The level of
wast in the tank at least once each operaf,'ng day to ensure compliance with Sec. 265.201(b)(3);
(4) e construction materials bf the tank at least weekly to detect corrosion or leaking of fixtures
or se ms; and (5) The construction materi Is of, and the area immediately surrounding, discharge
confi ement structures (e.g., di~es) at lea t weekly to detect erosion or obvious signs of leakage
(e.g., wet spots or dead vegetation). I

. I I

30. From at least May 23, 2007 until ebruary 20, 2008. Resllondents stored a drum of waste
sodi m hydrosulfide at the Tax

i
Parcel41 0102 portlion Facility. jRespondents shipped this

sodi m hydrosulfite off-site for, disposal fter 273 days of storage. The waste sodium
hydr sulfide was a solid waste which exhibited the characleristick of corrosivity and reactivity and
was erefore a hazardous wast~ (EPA HJzardous Waste Numbei D002 and D003) pursuant to 9

! I I

VA 20-60-261.A, which incorporates b . reference 40 C.F.R. § 261.22(b) and 23(b).
I I

31. From at least May 23, 2007 until ebruary 20, 2008, ResJondent Chemsolv stored Pit
slud e, described above, in the Pit. Resp ndent Chemsolv shipped this Pit sludge off-site for
disp sal after storing it on site ~or 273 da s. I

32. From at least May 23, 2bo7 until tbruary 20, 2008, Respondent Chemsolv stored
haza ous waste in a tank located on 1''lX arcei 4240104 of the J;acility, identified by Respondent
Che solv as the Pit, without a label or m rked with the words "Hazardous Waste."

i I I

! I !

33. From at least May 23, 2007 until ebruary 1,2008, Respondent Chemsolv did not inspect
, ,

the P t's: I) Discharge control equipment at least once each operating day; (2) Data gathered from
moni oring equipment at least once each perating day: (3) The level of waste in the tank at least
once ach operating day; (4) The construc ion materials of the tank at least weekly; and (5) The
cons uction materials of. and the area im ediately surrounding, 'discharge confinement structures

at Ie t weekly. II 1 I

34. Respondents have nevei had ape, it or interim status fO~ the Facility pursuant to 9 VAC
20-6 -270.A. which incorporat~s by referrnce 40 C.F.R. Part 270 with exceptions not relevant
herei , and Section 3005(a) and (e) of RCfA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925(a) and (e).

35. At all times relevant to tlhiS Compjaint. Respondents engjged in the "storage" of the
I

haza ous wastes referred to above at the raCility, as that term is ~efined in 9 VAC-20-60-260.A,
whic incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R § 260.10 with exceptions not relevant herein.

I I

I 6 I

,,
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3S.

36.

I

From at least May 23, 2007 until ebruary 1, 200S, Respdndents failed to qualify for the
"less han ISO day" generator accumulatio exemption of 9 VACi20-60-262.A, which

orates by reference 40 c.rR. § 262.34(d) with exceptions pot relevant herein, with respect
storage of the 55 gallon drum of so ium hydrosulfide and the waste stored in the Pit by
to satisfy the conditions ror the ex mption as set forth in1VAC 20-60-262.A.

37. From at least May 23, 2907 until ~ebruary I, 200S, Respondents owned and operated a
haza ous waste storage facilitx without permit or interim statuk, in violation of 9 VAC 20-60
270. , which incorporates by reference 4 C.F.R. Part 270 with exceptions not relevant herein,

I ,

and ection 3005(a) ofRCRA, ~2 V.S.c. § 6925(a) for which a penalty may be assessed pursuant
to Se tion 300S of RCRA, 42 y.S.C. § 69~S. I

I ~ I
I COUNT II I

(Failure to M, e \Vaste Determinati<!ns)
I 1

The preceding paragraphs are incoborated by reference.
! I

39. 9 VAC 20-60-262.A, which inco orates by reference 40 C.F .R. § 262.11 with exceptions
not r levant herein, provides that a person who generates a solid ~aste as defined in 9 VAC 20
60-2 .A, which incorporates by referenc 40 C.F.R § 260.10, w,ith exceptions not relevant
herei , shall determine if that waste is a h ardous waste, using the methods set forth in 9 VAC
20-6 -262.A, which incorporat<is by refer ,nce 40 C.F.R. § 262.11'1' with exceptions not relevant

hereil. I, 1
40. As the person who genJated the s lid wastes described i~ this Count. Respondent

, '

Che solv was required by 9 VAC 20-60-262.A. which incorporales by reference 40 C.F.R.
§ 26 .11 with exceptions not re'levant herfin, to determine if the kolid waste it generated was

hazar ous waste using the method prescribed by 40 C.F.R. § 261,111. incorporated by reference
into VAC 20-60-262. 1 I I

! I
41. From at least May 23, 2007 lInt:1 approximately February:l, 200S, Respondent Chemsolv
treate • stored and/or disposed of a solid 'faste. i.e., Pit water with a concentration of greater than
6.0 m /L chloroform and thus exhibiting tre hazardous waste characteristic of "toxicity" (0022),
witho t performing a hazardous'waste determination on such solid waste.

, I I !

42. From May 23, 2007 until approximately February I, 200S! Respondent Chemsolv treated,
store and/or disposed of a solid waste, i.el. Pit sludge with a concentration of greater than.7
mg/L etrachloroethene. and greater than '1 mg/L trichloroethene, ',and thus exhibiting the
hazar ous waste characteristic of "toxicity' (0039 and 0040) without performing a hazardous
waste determination on such solid waste. !

I !' I

43. On May lS. 2007 and again on Majy 23, 2007 used aerosol cans were in storage for

II !



47.

48.

I

I

\

I
I

i
dis sal with regular trash at the Facility.

; i .' .
44. . From at least January 1',2006 unt) May 23, 2007, Respondent Chemsolv treated, stored
and! r disposed of a solid wast'e, i.e., user aerosol cans, without Iperforming a hazardous waste
dete ination on such solid waste. \

45. Respondent Chemsolv bailed to p~rform a hazardous was,te determination, as required by 9
VA 20-60-262.A, which incorporates b reference 40 C.F.R. § 1262.11 with exceptions not
rde nt herein, on solid waste it generat d at the Facility as desyibed in this Count II.

46.' Respondent Chemsolv LOlated 9 AC 20-60-262.A, which incorporates by reference 40
I I

C.F. . § 262.11 with exception,s not rele ant herein, by failing tq perform a hazardous waste
dete ination on solid waste generated at the Facility and treated, stored and!or disposed at the
Facil ty, for which a penalty may be asses cd pursuant to Section' 3008 of RCM, 42 U.S.C.

§ 69 8. II I
I COUNT III i

(Failure to Ha 'e Secondary Containment)
i . I

The preceding paragrapls are inco orated by reference. I
9 VAC 20-60-264.A, w~ich inco orates by reference 40 FF.R. § 264.193(a) with

exce ions not relevant herein, provides t at secondary containment that meets the requirements,
of 40 .F.R.§ 264.193(a) must ge provide for new and existing tlank systems.

49. • 9 VAC 20-60-264.A, wJich incorp rates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.193(d) with
excep ions not relevant herein, provides th t secondary containmdnt for tanks must include one or
more fthe following devices: I) a liner e 'emal to the tank; 2) a ~ault; 3) a double-walled tank; or
4) an quivalent device as appro~ed by the Director, VADEQ.

I
50. 9 VAC-20-60-264.A, which incorp rates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.193(e)(l) with
excep ions not relevant herein, p'rovides th t an extemal liner syst~m must, inter alia, be designed
and in talled to completely surround the tahk and to cover all surrounding earth likely to come
into c ntact with the waste ifrel~ased froni the tank(s) (i.e., capable of preventing lateral as well

as ve ical migration of the wastf J \
51. From at least May 23, 2097 until a proximately February 1,,2008, Respondent Chemsolv
had n designed and installed th~ extemai lliner secondary containment for the Pit to completely
surrou d the Pit and to cover all surrollndirlg earth likdy to come into contact with the waste if
rdeas d from the Pit (i.e., capabl~ of preve I ting lateral as well as ~ertical migration of waste).
Moreo er, Respondents did not provide an other type of secondary containment device for the
Pit all wed by 40 C.F.R. § 264.193(d).

8



54.

53.

I

52. From at least May 23, 2007 until pproximatdy Februaryl!. 2008, Respondent Chemsolv
viola ed 9 VAC 20-60-264.A, 'Yhich inco orates by reference 4q C.F.R. § 264.193(a), (d) and
(e), ith exceptions not relevant herein, b failing to provide sec(;mdary containment for the Pit
whic met the requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 264. 193(1 lea), (d) and (e), for which a penalty may be
asses ed pursuant to Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.S c. § 6928. I

I I

i 1COUNTIV I
(Failure II' btain a Tank Assessment)

I '

The preceding paragraphs are incorPorated by reference. I

I l I

The Pit was installed at the Faciliti after July 14, 1986. I

I I
, ,

55. Respondent Chemsolv's'pit is a "new tank system" within:the meaning of9 VAC 20-60-
260. ,which incorporates by r~ference 40 C.F .R. § 260.10 and § '264.192(a), with exr.eptions not
relev t herein. I, l I

I I
56. Pursuant to 9 VAC 20-69-264.A 'Which mcorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264. I92(g),
with xceptions not relevant herein, ownen~ and operators of new 'tank systems and components
must btain and keep on file at the facility written statements by tp.ose persons required to certifY
the d sign of the tank system and supervis the installation of the ,tank system in accordance with
the re uirements of 40 C.F.R. § 264. I92(b, - (f) that attest that the tank system was properly
desig edand installed and that repairs, pu~suant to 40 C.F.R. § 2~4.192(b) - (f) were performed.
Thes written statements must also includd the certification statement as required in 40 C.F.R.

§ 270 11 (d). I I

57. From at least May 23, 20,07 umB a proximately February ,2008, Respondent Chemsolv
did n t obtain and/or keep on file at the Fa ility written statement~ by those persons required to
certi the design of the tank system and s pervise the installation' of the tank system in

, I

accor ance with the requirements of 40 C. .R. § 264. I92(b) - (f) for the Pit, as required by 9 VAC
20-60 264.A which incorporates by refere ce 40 C.F.R.§ 264. I92(a) and (g), for which a penalty
may assessed pursuant to Section 3008 bfRCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6928.

'. I ICOUNT ,~ II

(Failure to Conduct and/or Document Inspections in the Facilitv Operating Record)
i I I •

58. The preceding paragraphs are incorPorated by reference.

59. Pursuant to 9 VAC 20-66-264.A, 31hiCh incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.195(d),
with e ceptions not relevant herein, owner or operators of tanks rPust document in the facility
operat ng record inspections of the aboveg ound portions of the tank system, if any, to detect
corros on or releases, and the construction Laterials and the area immediately surrounding the',111 I

I I 9 i

. .. I I,



exte ally accessible portion ofthe tank s stem, including secondary containment structures to
detec erosion or signs of releasrs of haza dous waste. I

60. Pursuant to 9 VAC 20-~0-264.A, hich incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.195(b),
with xceptions not relevant herein, the idspections described in Paragraph 59, above, shall be
cond cted at least once each oprratingdar' I

61. From at least May 23, 2007 until 1ebruary 1,2008, incluqing all "operating days" within
the eaning of 9 VAC 20-60-2p4.A, whiih incorporates by reference 40 C.F .R. § 264.195(b) and
(d) 'th exceptions not relevant herein, Rfspondent Chemsolv di,d not inspect and/or document
the i spections of the abovegro~nd portions of the Pit. I

I J !62. Respondent Chemsolv's failure to inspect and/or document the inspections of the
abov ground portions of the Pi\ each ope lating day <;onstitutes a yiolation of the requ~reme~ts of 9
VA 20-60-264.A, which lllc0I)Joraleo b~ reference 40 C.F.R. § ;264.195(b) and (d), for which a
pena ty may be assessed pursuant to <,ectipn 3008 ofRCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928.

. I ICOUNT VI I

, (Failure to Comply w th Subpart CC Standards for Tanks)

!

63. The preceding paragraphs are inc rporated by reference.

I

64. 9 VAC 20-60-264.A, which inco .orates by reference 40 rF.R. § 264.1 080(a), provides
that e requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 264. 080 apply to owners al)d operators of all facilities that
treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste in tanks. surface impoundments, or containers subject

,

to ei er subpart I, J, or K of 40 C.F.R. P 264 exct:pt as 40 C.F.R. § 264.1 and 40 C.F.R.
§ 26 .1 080(b) provide otherwise.

I

65.· At the time of the May 23, 2007 ~PA inspCCltion, and at all times relative to this
Com laint, the hazardous waste storage t known as the "Pit" ~as subject to the requirements
of 9 AC 20-60-264.A, whichincorpora es by reference 40 C.FlR. Part 264, Subpart J, with
exce tions not relevant herein. I I

66.' At no time was the Pit ~ unit e~"e ted from regulation under 40 C.F.R. § 264.1080
'I 'purs ant to 40 C.F.R. § 264.1 060(b) or e~empt from the standards in 40 C.F.R. § 264.1084

thm gh .1087 pursuant to 40 CI·F.R. § Iorec). I

67. At the time of the May 2.3, 2007 1PA inspection, EPA t06k samples of the sludge from the
Pit. he analysis of the May 23, 2007 Pii sludge sample indicatdd the Pit sludge contained a
vola Ie organic ("VO") concentration of greater than the regulat6ry threshold 500 parts per
milli n by weight. The May 23, 2007 Pit sludge sample indicated the Pit sludge contained aVO
conc ntration of greater than 3~,000 part per million by weight. I

I

I .

I! 10
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c.

a.

68. 9 VAC 20-60-264.A, which inco lorates hy reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.1082(b), provides
that t e owner and operator of a tank' shall control air pollutant e~issions from such unit in
accor ance with the standards specified in 40 C.F.R. § 264.1084: .1087, with exceptions not
re1ev t to this matter. i II

I I

69. 9 VAC 20-60-264.A, which incoJorates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.1084(b)(l),
provi es that the owner and operator of a 'ank that meets the conditions specified in 40 C.F .R.
§ 26 1084(b)(i) - (iii) shall control air po lutant emissions from such tank in accordance with
Tank eve1 1 controls specified in 40 c.F.IR. § 264.1084(c) or Tank Level 2 controls specified in
40 C. .R. § 264.1084(d). Pursuant to 9 V~C 20-60-264.A, which incorporates by reference 40
C.F.. § 264.1084(b)(2), owners and oper~tors of tanks which doinot meet all of the conditions
specifed in 40 C.F.R. § 264.1084(b)(i) - Ciii), and thus do not qualifY for the use ofTank Levell
contryls, must control air pollutant emissibns from such tanks in accordance with Tank Level 2
contr Is. : I

70. Respondent Chemsolv d1id not im 1ement either Tank LeJel 1 or Tank Level 2 controls for
the P because Respondent Chemsolv fail d to: I

I '
! i

determine the maximum or anic vapor pressure fo'r a hazardous waste to be
managed in such tankhefo e the first time the haz~rdous waste is placed in the
tank, using the proce.hres ~et forth in 40 C.F.R. §264.1083(c), as required by 9
VAC 20-60-264.A, which Incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.1084(c)(l)
(40 C.F.R. § 264

i
I084(C)(1)-Tank Levell); I

equip the Pit with a fixed r of desigll(~d and operated to meet Tank Level I
required specifications set forth in 40 C.F.R. § 26~.1084(c)(2) and (3) (40 C.F.R.
§ 264.1084(c)(2), and (3)- Tank Level I); I

inspect the air emission co I trol equipment in accordance with the requirements set
forth in VAC 20-60-264.A which incorporates bY,reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.1084
(c)(4), and to document su h inspections in accordance with the requirements
specified in VAC 20-60-2 4.A, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.
1089(b) (40 C.F.R. § 264.1084 (c)(4)-Tank Levell);

, ,

I I, ,

utilize and operate a fixed lOOf tank equipped with an internal floating roof in
accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 264.1084(e), or a tank equipped with an external
floating roof in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 264.1,084(f), or a tank vented through
a closed-vent system in ac ordance with 40 C.F.R, § 264.1084(g), or a pressure
tank designed and opemte I in accord,mce with 40 ,C.F.R. § 264.1 084(h), or a tank
located in an enclosuf,~·lha is vented through a closed-vent system to an enclosed
combustion control device'n accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 264.1084(i) (40 C.F.R.
§ 264. I084(d)-Tank Level ); I

I

I



e. inspect air emiss on contro equioment for the Pit and maintain records of such

~:~:~~~ns as srcified in 0 C.F.R. I084(e) - (hi' (40 C.F.R. §264.1 084(d) - Tank

I ,

71. Respondent Chemsolv violated 9 AC 20-60-264.A, which incorporates by reference 40
,

C.F.. § 264.1082(b) and.1084(b), by failing to control air pollutant emissions from the Pit in
acco dance with the Tank Level I or 2 controls specified in 40 C'F.R. § 264.1 084(c) or (d), for
whic a penalty may be assessed pursuanl to Section 3008 ofRCRA, 42 V.S.c. § 6928.

, . I
::., COUNT VII I

(Failure to Pro erly Close a Regulated, Tank)

I !

72. The preceding paragraphs are inc rporated by reference. !
I '

I !

73. 9 VAC 20-60-264.A. which inco orates by reference 40;C.F.R. § 264.111, provides that
the er or operator of a hazardous wasfe transfer, storage, or d,isposal facility must close the
facil ty in a manner that: (a) minimizes tIt need for further maintenance; and (b) controls,
mini izes or eliminates, to the'extent nedessary to protect humah health and the environment,
post~losure escape of hazardous waste, Hazardous constituents, I,eachate, contaminated run-off, or
haza~douswaste decomposition products to the ground or surfac~ waters or to the atmosphere;
and qc) complies with the closure require ents of 40 C.F.R. Part' 264 Subpart G, including. but
not lImited to, the requirements of 40 C. .R. 264.197 for tanks. !

, !

, I

74. 9 VAC 20-60-264.A, ~hich inco orates by reference 40, C.F.R. § 264.112(a) and (b),
prov des that the owner Or operator of a azardous waste management facility must have a written
clos re plan, and that the plan must inclu~e at least the information described in 40 C.F.R.

i r I

§26.112(b). I !

, !

75. 9 VAC 20-60-264.A, which inc') orates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.197(a), provides
infe alia ,that at closure of a tank syste , the owner or operator! must remove or decontaminate
all aste residues, contaminated contain ent system components (liners, etc.), contaminated
soil , and structures and equipment cont minated with waste, and manage them as hazardous
was , unless 40 C.F.R. § 261.3(d) appli s. The closure plan and, closure activities for tank
syst ms must meet all of the requiremen specified in 40 C.F.R!Part 264 Subpart G.

I !

76. 9 VAC 20-60-264.A, which inco orates by reference 4Q C.F.R. § 264.197(b), provides
that f the owner Or operator demonstratef that not all contaminated soils can be practicably
rem ved or decontaminated as required in 40 C.F.R. § 264.197(~), then the owner or operator
mus close the tank system and perform ~ost-closure care in accordance with the closure and post
clos re care requirements that apply to landfills (40 C.F.R. § 264.310). In addition, for the
pu oses of closure, post-closure, and firiancial responsibility, such a tank system is then
con idered to be a landfill, and,! the owner! or operator must meet all of the requirements for

I 12
i

! !



landfi Is specified in subparts G :and H of is part.
,

I

77. 9 VAC 20-60-264.A, which inco orates by reference 40 ~.F.R. § 264.197(c), provides
that i an owner or operator has a tank sys em that does not have secondary containment that
meet the requirements of §264) 93(b) thr ugh (f) and has not been granted a variance from the
secon ary containment requirements in ac ordance with 40 C.F.R. § 264.193(g), then: (I) the
closu e plan for the tank system'must incl de both a plan for complying with 40 C.F.R. § 264.
197( and a contingent plan for; complyin with paragraph 40 C.F .R. § 264.197(b).

I . I

78. The Pit was a hazardous;waste stollage tank system which ,did not have secondary
conta nment that met the requirements of 4~0 C.F .R. § 264.193(b) :and (c) and had not been granted
a vari ce pursuant to 40 C.F.R 1 § 264.19 (g). I

. I

79. Respondent Chemsolv has never h d a closure plan for the Pit or any other hazardous
wast management unit at the Facilitv in cordance with the req~irements of 40 C.F.R.

I '§ 264 112. I :

I

80. Respondent Chemsolv closed the it and removed the carbon steel tank which constituted
the" it" from the ground on or l1bout Feb ary 1,2008. i

I '

81. Respondent Chemsolv took sampl s of the soil surrounding the Pit, but did not obtain an
analy is of such samples. I J I

82. Respondent Chemsolv d1id not re ove or decontaminate ~ll waste residues, contaminated
conta nment system components (liners, e c.), contaminated soils; and structures and equipment
conta inated with waste, and manage the as hazardous waste with respect to the closure of the
pit. I

I

83. Respondent Chemsolv did not haY a closure plan with closure activities, cost estimates
for cl sure, and financial respo~sibility fo tank systems meeting ~ll of the requirements specified
in 40 C.F.R. Part 264 Subparts? and H. I

84. Respondent Chemsolv ~iolated 9 AC 20-60-264.A, whi~h incorporates by reference 40
C.F. . § 264.197, by failing to eomplywi h the closure requirements of 40 C.F.R. Part 264,

I • ,

Subp s G and H. I I

, I

I

1m. CIDMPLIANCE ORDER: J I

85. Pursuant to the authori~ of Sectio 3008(a) of RCRA, 42; U.S.C. § 6928(a), Respondents
are h reby ordered to perform the Compli~nce Tasks listed in this Section III, below, upon the

. I

effec ive date of this Compliance Order. Pursuant to Section 22.37 of the Consolidated Rules of
Pract ce, this Compliance Order shall aut matically become a Final Order unless, no later than 30

I

I 13
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,",y,' ft" <hI, Com,11$00 0nI" "" "",j ~'y"'. R",,,d,o" '" "'" " h'"iog ~ d,~rib,d i,
Secti n V of this Complaint. Respondent~ shall certify completi~n of all Compliance Tasks in
accor ance with Paragraph 90 below. "DJys" as used herein shall mean calendar days unless

, ,

speci led otherwise. " . ' I

I ,

86. Respondents shall immediately ce~'se storing hazardous w',aste at the Facility except in
accor ance with a permit or interim status obtained pursuant to ReRA Section 3005, 42 U.S.C. §
6925,9 VAC 20-60-270.A, which incorp rates by reference 40 C',.F.R. Part 270 with exceptions
not r evant herein, or in accordance with ~ valid permit exemption under the 2003 VHWMP.

I I. I
87. Respondent Chemsolv shall immediately perform waste cteterminations on every solid
waste generated at the Facility in accord~ce with 9 VAC 20-60-262.A, which incorporates by
refer ce 40 C.F.R. § 262.11 with excepticJns not relevant herein, land submit a report of each such
dete ination to EPA, stating the waste d1termination method used and the result of such waste
dete ination. I I

I "

88. Respondents shall imme~iately obJain a waste analysis 1'0), every hazardous waste treated,
store or disposed of at the Facility in accJrdance with 9 VAC 20~60-264.A, which incorporates
by re rence 40 ~.F .R. § 264.13(a)( I), andl submit a report of eac~ such analysis to EPA, stating
the w ste determmatlOn method used and the result of such wasteldetermmatlOn.

I I I
89. Respondent Chemsolv shall, wit~i~ sixty (60) days .ofthe ~ate of this Complaint, submit a
closu plan prepared pursuant to 9 V A_ 20-60-264.A, which mcorporates by reference 40 C.F .R.
§ 264 112 and .197 with exceptions not reltvant herein, for the area where the Pit was located at
the F ility and submit such plan to the Vi ginia Department of Environmental Quality.

i i

, I

90. Any notice, report, certification, d~ta presentation, or other document submitted by either
Resp ndent pursuant to this Compliance qrder which discusses, describes, demonstrates, supports
any fi ding or makes any representation cqnceming such Respondent's compliance or
nonc pliance with any requirements of this Compliance Order shall be certified by a responsible
corpo ate officer of such Respondent. A rJsponsible corporate officer means: (I) a president,
secret ry, treasurer, or vice-presi,dent ofthJ corporation in charge pf a principal business function,
or an other person who performs similar Jolicy or decision-making functions for the corporation;

I '

or (2) he manager of one or more manufa turing, production. or operating facilities employing
more han 250 persons or having gross an ual sales or expenditures exceeding $25 million (in
secon quarter 1980 dollars), if authority t sign documents has b~en assigned or delegated to the
mana er in accordance with corporate pro edures. !

I I
The certification of the r~sponsible corporate officer required above shall be in the
following form:. I

I certify that the infonEl,tiort contained in or accom'panying this [type of
submission] is tr~e, accuratt and complete. As to [the/those] identified portions of

\

I



this [type of submission] f\lr which I cannot personally verify [its/their] accuracy, I
certify under penalty of lay that this [type ofsubm.ission] and allattachments were
prepared m accordance wl,h a system deslgned to assure the quahfied personnel
properly gather and evaJua~e the infom1ation submitted. Based on my inquiry of
the person or pe~sons who manage the system, or I.hose persons directly responsible
for gathering the informati n, the information submitted is, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, truef accurate and complet~. I am aware that there are
significant penalties for supmitting false information, including the possibility of
fines and imprisonmenr,IOJ knowing violations. I

Sig ature: I. . _

Na e: 1'-.- _
Titl -------;1-------

I

I

Any notifications or submissions quired by this Compliance Order to be submitted to
EPA, including, but not limited to, the a~ rementioned certification, shall be sent via certified
maill'eturn receipt requested or overnight mail commercial deliv~ry service to the attention of the
follo ing persons: i I

I IKenneth J. Cox (3LC70)
Land and Chemicals Divis'on II

United States Environment I Protection Agency - Region III
1650 Arch Street I
Philadelphia, Pel)Ilsylvania 19103-2029; and

I

I

Joyce A. Howell, Esq. (3R 30)
Senior Assistant Regkllnl ounsel
Land and Chemi,?als Dl'iisifn .
United States Environmental Pwtection Agency - Region III

I
1650 Arch Street I

Philadelphia,PA19103-20 9 I

Any violation of the Compliance rder or further violation of RCRA Subtitle C may
subjeft Respondents to further administrafve, civil and/or crimin~l enforcement action, including
the i position of civil penalties, criminal mes and/or imprisonment, as provided in RCRA
Secti n 3008, 42 U.S.c. § 6928:

1

II

IV. I PROJOSED CIVIL PENALTV
i . ) I

Based on the foregoing allegations and pursuant to the authority of Section 3008(a)(I) and
(g) of RCRA, 42 U.S.c.§ 6928(a)p) and (3), and (g), Complainant proposes the

asses ent a civil penalty against each Respondent per day of non-compliance for each violation.
The ivil Monetary Penalty Inflation Adjt stment Rule, 40 C.F.R. Part 19, increased the

15



I

I I

urn amount of civil penalties whiclLan be assessed by EPA for each day of a violation of
RC Subtitle C occurring on or after January 30, 1997 and on 61' before March 15,2004 from
$25, 00 to $27,000, after March 15,2004 and or before January )2,2009 to $32,500, and after
Janu ry 12, 2009, to $37,600. i 'I

i i
92. For the purpose of determining th9 amount of a civil pena!ty to be assessed under RCRA
RC Section 3008(a)(3), 42 U.S.c.§ 6128(a)(3), requires EPA'to take into account the
serio sness of the violation and'any good raith efforts by each Re~pondent to comply with
appli able requirements (i.e .. the "statutory factors"). In developirg a civil pena!ty, Complainant
will t e into account the particular facts and circumstances of this case with specific reference to

,I ,
the a rementioned statutory factors and EPA's June 2003 RCM Civil Penalty Policy ("RCRA
Penal Policy"), a copy of which is enclo~ed with this Complaint (Enclosure A). This RCRA
Penal y Policy provides a rationill, consist~nt and equitable meth~dology for applying the statutory
facto s enumerated above to paI1icular casb. As a basis for calculating a specific penalty
pursu nt to 40 C.F.R. § 22.14(a)(4), Com~lainant will also consider, among other factors,
Resp ndents' inability to pay a civil pellal~'Y. The burden ofraisirig and demonstrating an inability
to pa rests with the Respondents. In addi iOll, to the extent that the facts and circumstances
unkn wn to Complainant at the time of th issuance of the Complaint become known after the
Com laint is issued, such facts and circurrlstances may also be co~sidered as a basis for increasing
or de, reasing the civil penalty, ~s approprirte. I

93. The proposed penalty does not con~titute a "demand" as that term is defined in the Equal
Acce s to Justice Act, 28 U.S.c. § 2412. Pursuant to Section 22.14(a)(4)(ii) of the Consolidated
Rules of Practice, an explanation of the nubber and severity of vi61ations is given below
conce ing the aforesaid Counts,: alleged i~ this Complaint. I

94. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22. I4(a)(4j(ii), Complainant is noi proposing a specific penalty at
thi: ti e, but will do so at a later date afteItI an exchange of information has occurred. See 40
C.f. §22.19(a)(4). I

"

I

==+,-T~I - Owning and/or operating a azardous waste storage facility without a permit or
status as to Respondent Chems Iv "

I I

The "potential for harm" arisi~'2 fr~'m Respondent Chems~lv's storage of hazardous waste
witho t a permit is "moderate." :Respond nt Chemsolv's failure t6 comply with the permitting
requir ments of RCRA and the authorized VAWHP constitutes a~,oderate potential for harm to
huma health, the environment and the R RA program. The permitting process is the backbone
of the RCRA program and ensur~s that faCilities that manage hazardous wastes handle them in a
mann I' so as to minimize their risk to hu~an health and the envir?nment. Failure to obtain a
permi or interim status prior to the treatm nt, storage and/or disposal of hazardous waste is
evide ce indicating that a facility is not in ituting those practices 'and procedures required by
RC for the safe management and handl ng of these waste, thereby, posing a risk to human

, I
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healt and the environment. Failure to ob ain a permit and interim status also impedes EPA's
abilit to regulate hazardous waste activiti s by members of the regulated community, like
Resp ndent Chemsolv, due to the fact that the RCRA regulatory program and Complainant rely
upon he self-reporting of members of the egulated community. i

i '. I

Respondent Chemsolv's deviation ~romthe regulatory requirements presented by
Resp ndent Chemsolv's activiti~s is "mod~rate." Respondent Ch~msolv met some, but not all, of
the co ditions which they needer to meet~[n order to be exempt frim permitting requirements.

Economic Benefit ofNon-complia ce: In addition to a gravity-based penalty for Count I,
Com ainant shall als~ seek assessment 0 a penalty that takes intb account the economic benefit
of no -compliance gained by Respondent s a result of its failure to obtain a permit or interim
status prior to storing hazardous waste at t~e Facility. This comP9nent includes the cost savings
of not disposing of hazardous wastes <It appropriate intervals. I

I i I
I '

COD T I - Owning and/or operating a hazardous waste stora,ge facility without a permit or
I

interi status as to Respondeit Austin jOldings i

The "potential for harm" arising fr<lm Respondent Austin Holdings' storage of hazardous
waste ithout a permit is "minor." Respondent Austin Holdings' failure to comply with the
permi ting requirements of RCRA and the ruthorized VAWHP with respect to a single container
of ha dous waste constitutes a minor pot ntial for harm to hum~n health, the environment and
the R RA program. The permitting proce s is the backbone of the RCRA program and ensures
that t: ilities that manage hazardous waste handle them in a manner so as to minimize their risk
to hu an health and the environment. Fail re to obtain a permit or interim status prior to the
treat nt, storage and/or disposal of hazar ous waste is evidence indicating that a faci lity is not
instit ing those practices and procedures r qui red by RCRA for the safe management and
hand!' g of these waste, thereby, posing a risk to human health and the environment. Failure to
obtai a permit and interim status also imp~des EPA's ability to regulate hazardous waste
activi es by members of the regulated community. like Respondent Austin Holdings, due to the
fact t t the RCRA regul~tory program ant Complainant rely upop the self-reporting of members

of the egulated commumty. i . . I I
Respondent Austin Holdings' devi tion from the regulatory requirements presented by

such espondent's activities is "minor." R spondent Austin Holdings owns a portion of the
Facili on which a relatively small amoun of hazardous waste was stored or contained, and had

Ivement in the daily operation ofth Facility. I

Economic Benefit ofNon~complian e. In addition to a gravity-based penalty for Count I,
Comp ainant shall also seek assessment ofla penalty that takes into account the economic benefit
of no compliance gained by Respondent Austin Holdings as a result ofits failure to obtain a
permi or interim status prior to storing hJardous waste at the Facility. This component includes
the co t savings of not disposing, of hazardfus wastes at appropriate intervals.

I
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CO NT II . Failure to perform Hazarilous Waste Determinations (Respondent Chemsolv)

Gravity-Based Penalty ~ompone It: The "potential for ha~" arising from Respondent
Chet lsolv's failure to perform hazardous waste determinations on solid wastes generated at the
Faci 'ty is moderate. The performance 0 hazardous waste determinations is the initial trigger for
the i plementation of the RCRA regulati ns and the authorized VAWHP at a facility for the safe
hand ing and management of hazardous astes. Respondent Chemsolv's failure to perform such
dete inations resulted in hazardous was es not being identified as such and not being properly
man ged and handled at the Facility, ther by, posing a significant risk to human health and the
envi nment. Additionally, the failui'~,t() erform such determinaiions poses a significant potential
for h to the RCRA program which·teltcs upon members of the regulated community, like
Resp ndent Chemsolv, to identifY hazar4us wastes and institute those practices and procedures
dee d necessary under RCRA for their safe handling, storage, treatment and/or disposal.

. I i
! I

Respondent Chemsolv failed to pe form waste determinations on at least six separate
wast streams. Accordingly, the extent 0 deviation from the regulatory requirements presented
by R spondent Chemsolv 's activities is" ajor." I

, i

Economic Benejit ofNon-Complia ce: In addition to a gr~vity.based penalty for this
Coun , Complainant shall also seek assessment of a penalty that takes into account the economic
bene t gained by Respondent Chemsolv a a result of its failure to perform hazardous waste
dete inations.' I

\

==+,-T"-,I..,I,,,I Failure to Have Seconda Containment (Respondent ChemsoIv)
I !
, I

Gravity-Based Penalty Componen : The "potential for harm" arising from Respondent
Che olv's failure to have secondary con~inment on the subgrade hazardous waste storage tank
know as the "Pit" is "major." The Suhpa J requirements regulate the management of hazardous
waste in tanks. The failure to proper!\! ma age a tank being utilized for hazardous waste storage
can r ult in an injury or a release to the erlvironment. Respondent Chemsolv completely failed to
comp with this secondary containment riqUirement. i

, I
i i

Respondent Chemsolv's deviation rom the regulatory requirements is also "major" since
as no attempt to meet the regulato requirements to proviqe secondary containment for

I
I

Economic Benejit ofNon:complian e: In addition to a gravity-based penalty for this
Count Complainant shall also seek assess lent of a penalty that takes into account the economic
benefi gained by Respondent Chemsolv a a result of its fai lure to provide secondary containment
for th Pit.
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COU T IV Failure to Obtain a Tank Assessment (Respondent Chemsolv)

Gravity-Based Penalty component.1 The "potential for h~" arising from Respondent
Chern olv's failure to obtain and keep on ~le at the facility written statements by those persons
requir d to certify the design of the tank s)1[tem and supervise the installation of the tank system
in ace rdance with the requirements of 40 .F.R. § 264.192(b) - (t) that attest that the tank system
was p operly designed and installed and th, t repairs, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 264. I92(b) - (t),
were erforrned and the failure to obtain a bertiflcation statement as required in 40 C.F.R.
§ 270 ll(d) for the subgrade hazardous w~ste storage tank known: as the "Pit" is "major."
Resp ndent Chemsolv's attempt to prove <lompliance with this requirement constituted a
state ent that the tank plans had been stafped by an engineer. Tpis falls far short of meeting the
regul tory requirement. The failure of a tafl< being used to store ~azardous waste can result in an

:~{~ r ;~i~e~l~::.e to the enviroTent. ReJspondent Chemsolv COjPletelYfailed to comply with

Respondent Chemsolv's'deviation [rom the regulatory reqlIirements is also "major" since
there as no substantial attempt to meet t ,e regulatory requiremerts to ensure proper design and
instal ation of the Pit.: I

i

Economic Benefit o/Non-compliance: In addition to a gravity-based penalty for this
Coun , Complainant shall also seek assessrent of a penalty that takes into account the economic
bene t gained by Respondent Cihemsolv 15 a result of its failure to comply with thiS requlTement.

: I

CO T V Failure to Conduct and/or Document Inspections in the Facility Operating
Reco d (Respondent Chemsolv) l !

, i

Gravity-BaJ'cd Penalty Componen : The "potential for harm" arising from Respondent
Che solv's failure to conduct and or docfment daily tank inspections in the Facility operating
recor for the "Pit" is "major." Respondert Chemsolv stated that the Pit was visually inspected
whe material was placed into or taken fr?m the Pit. Such observations fail to satisfy the "each
oper ting day" requirement of the regulation and fail to create the written record that the
regul tions require. The failure to properly manage a tank being utilized for hazardous waste
stora e can result in an injury o,r a releas;to the environment. R~spondent Chemsolv completely
faile to comply with this requirement. !

~ :I

Respondent Chemsolv's deviatio from the regulatory requirements is also "major" since
ther was no attempt to meet the regUbtor! requirements, only, at best, the sporadic visual
obse ation by employees adding materia to or removing material from the Pit.

I I I

Economic Benefit o/Non-comPlitce: In addition to a gravity-based penalty for this
Cou t, Complainant shall also seek asses ment of a penalty that takes into account the economic
ben it gained by Respondent Chemsolv s a result of its failure to document daily inspections of
the it.
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COD T VI Failure to Comply with SuJ)part CC Standards f'1r Tanks as required by 40
C.F. . § 264. Subpart Cc. (ReiPoll:~~ntjChemsolv) !

Gravity-Based Penalty compo~enJ The "potential for harl" arising from Respondent
Chern olv's failure to comply with the s~part CC regulation is "major." The Subpart CC
requir ments regulate air emissions from olatile organic compounds in hazardous waste.
Resp dent Chemsolv had an open top t k subject to the Subpart CC regulations. The Subpart
CC re uirements would require Responde'llt Chemsolv, at a minimum, to maintain air emission
equip ent and structural controls, inspect such equipment and do~ument all inspections. There
was n attempt to comply with this requir~ment. and therefore other important regulatory
requi ments were also violated as a resultl Respondent Chemsolv's failure in this regard resulted
in the prohibited release of VOCs into the tmosphere. The release of VOCs to the atmosphere
prese ts a substantial potential from harm oth to human health and the environment. VOCs are a

,

suspe ted carcinogen, can pose ~ risk of fi e and are implicated in the deterioration of the
atmo heric ozone. I i

, I
I ,

The extent of deviation from the r gulatory requirements presented by Respondent
Che solv's activities is "major'; since Re pondent Chemsolv completely failed to comply with
this r quirement. I

I

Economic Bene/il ofNon-comp!ia ce: In addition to a gravity-based penalty for this
Coun , Complainant shall also seek ass~ssbent of a penalty that takes into account the economic
bene t gained by Respondent Chemsolv*a result of its failure to comply with the Subpart CC
regul tions, including the requirement that the subject tank be covered, inspected and the
requi ement that records be maintained of such inspections. I

i I
I

CO T VII Failure to COmp,lY with t1e Closure Requirements for a Hazardous Waste
Tan (Respondent Chemsolv) !

i I
, I
, '

Grav ty-Based Penalty Componenl: Thc "potential for harm" arising from Respondent
Che solv's failure to comply with the requirements for removal of the subgrade hazardous waste
stora e tank known as the "Pit" is "major.

t
' The tank closure requirements ensure that the tank is

remo ed properly and that any hazardous waste generated by the removal of the tank is properly
man ed. Moreover, closure requirement ensure that any remaining contamination is addressed.
Inex licably, Respondent Chemsolv took! samples and did not have them analyzed. Absent
prop r closure in accordance with the rcgililations, the potential for harm to the environment is
subs ntial. I I

,

!

The extent of deviation from the regulatory requirements presented by Respondent
Che solv's activities is "major" since 'tel pondent Chemsolv failed to comply with regulations

I
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,

for cl( sure of a hazardous waste storage tank, thus failing to ensure that any potential for harm to
huma health and the environmrt was.abtted. Ii

Economic Benefit ofNon'-complianpe: In addition to a gravity-based penalty for this
Coun Complainant shall also seek assess rent of a penalty that takes into account the economic
benef gained by Respondent Chemsolv a a result of its failure to comply with the hazardous
waste ank closure regulations. I

I
, i

! !

Within t:i'rt:~::::y~:~:~:;;tR~T~;:I:~m::i::~hEr:~::~::~equesta
hearir ~ before an EPA Administrative La Judge and at such heafing may contest any matcrial
fact, c~nclusion oflaw and/or the appropri teness of any penalty ~mount proposed to he assessed
for th violations alleged in this comPlain~. To request a hearing, a Respondent must tile a
writte answer ("Answer") within thirty (3 ) days of receipt of this Complaint. Thc Answer
shoul comply with the requirements of4 C.F.R. § 22.15. The Answer should clearly and
direct Iv admit, deny or explain each of the factual allegations contained in this Complaint of
which such Respondent has any knowled~f' Where a Respondent has no knowledge of a
partic lar factual allegation, the Answer s90u1d so state. The Answer should contain: (I) the
circun stances or arguments which are alleged to constitute the grounds of any defense; (2) the
facts hich such Respondent disputes; (3) ~he basis for opposing any proposed relief; and (4) a
staterr ent ofwhethf'r a hearing is requested. All material facts not denied in the Answer w:1l he

consi( ered to be admitted. 'J II

Ifa ResponQent fails to file a writ! n Answer within thirtY '(30) davs of receipt of this
Comn aint such failure shall constitute an l,dmission by such Respondent of all facls alleged in
the C mplaint and a waiver bv such Respohdent of the right to a hearing. Failure to Answer may
result n the filing (,f a Motion for D('f~c-l!!..brder and the possible issuance of a Default Order
imnos nIl the nenalties nronosed here!,,~inst~uch Respondnt without further proceedings.

! I i

Any hearing requested and granted will be conducted in ac~ordance with the Consolidated
Rules of Practice. Hearings will be held a a location to be determined at a later date pursuant to
the C nsolidated Rules of Practice. I

Each Respondent's Answer and all[ther documents that a'Respondent files in this action
shoul be sent to: ,

Regional He ing Clerk (3RCOO)
U.S. EPA Rdgion III ,
1650 Arch Street ;
Philadelphia] PA 19103-2029.

• I

In add lion, a copy of each Respondent's Answer should be sent to Joyce A. Howell, Esq" the
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attorn y assigned to represent :I:ei:.":Si:::,e~s:t:(3RC30)

Senior Assis ant Regional Counsel
Land and C emicals Division
United StaterI Environmental Proteciion Agency - Region III
1650 Arch S reet I

p~lladelPhJal PA 19103-2029 i

; I

VI.' SETTLJrMENT CONFERENCE

Complainant encourageSisettlement of the proceedings at ~ny time after issuance of the
Comp aint if such settlement is consistent rith the provisions and objectives of RCRA. Whether
or not a hearing is requested, a Respondenl may request a settlement conference with the
Com ainant to discuss the allegations of t e Complaint and the amount of the proposed civil
penal . A request for a settlement confer nce does not relieve a Respondent of its responsibility

, ,

to file a timely Answer. I I

, ,

In the event settlement is reaGh,~d, he tenns shall be expressed in a written Final
Agree ent prepared by Complainant ~.jgn d by the parties, and incorporated into a Final Order
signe by the Regional Administrator or h s designee. The execu\ion of such a Consent
Agre ent shall constitute a waiver of the settling Respondent's right to contest the allegation in
the C mplaint and its right to appeal the p oposed Final Order accompanying the Consent
Agre ent. i

! !

If you wish to arrange a settlement conference or have legal questions concerning this
matte, please contact Joyce A. Howell, S nior Assistant Regional Counsel, at (215) 814-2644.
Once gain, however, such a request for a settlement conference does not relieve a Respondent of
its res onsibility to file an Ans~er within ihirty (30) days fOllOWiig its receipt of this Complaint.

The Quick Resolution settlement procedures set forth at 49 C.F.R.§ 22.18 of the
Cons lidated Rules of Practice do not appjy because the Complaint seeks a Compliance or
Corre tive Action Order or penn,it action ind does not propose assessment of a specific penalty.

: i

VII. SEPARATION OF FUNCTIONS AND EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS

The following Agency o~ficers, anI the staffs thereof, are keSignated as the trial staff to
repre nt the Agency as the party in ihLi c se: the Region III Office of Regional Counsel, the
Regi III Land and Chemicals Division, d the Office of the EPA Assistant Administrator for
Enfor ement and Compliance Assurance. Commencing from the date of issuance of this
Com laint until issuance of a final agency decision in this case, neither the Administrator,
mem ers of the Environmental Appeals Bard, Presiding Officer, Regional Administrator, nor
Regi al Judicial Officer, may have an ex arte communication with the trial staff or the merits of

, 22 I
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Date:.-l-~~'--.!..:'----
Abraha
Director
Land and Chemical Division

any is ue involved :n this proceeding. Plefse be advised that the Consolidated Rules prohibit any
ex pa Ie discussion of the merits of a case rith, among others the Administrator, members of the
Envir nmental Appeals Board, the Presiding Officer, the Regional Administrator, and the
Regia al Judicial Officer.

REFERENCES AND ENCLOSURES

A. Ju e 2003 - RCRA Civil PeI)alty POliCr (enclosed). ,

B. C nsolidated Rules of Practi~e - 40 C'l.R. Part 22 (enclosed).;

C. 40 C.F.R. § 19A (chart) (enclosed) .

D. Vi ginia Regulations Govef!ling I~ ,,~arbms Waste, 9 VAC 2-60-12 el seq., authorized by EPA
pursu nt to RCRA Section 3006, 42 u.s.d. § 6926 (enclosed).
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THE NITED STATES
ENVIRONMEN AL PROTECTION AGENCY

EGlON III

In the Matter of:

CHE SOLV, INC., formerly trading as
Che cals and Solvents, Inc.

and I

I

AUS IN HOLDINGS-VA, L.L.,c.

Respondents.

Che olv, Inc.
IIII ndustrial Avenue, S.E
1140 ndustrial Avenue, S.E
Roan ke, Virginia 24013

Facility

EPA Docket No. RCRA·03-2~11-0068~
I

: . _ ..

j-' ::'

;> : ...
--, .
- > ~

Proceeding under Section 3008(a)
of the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C.
Section 6928(a)

!

'CERTIF~CATE OF SERVIC~
I

I certify that, I sent by UPS, 'lGt tjay delivery, a copy of the Complaint, Consolidated
Rules of Practice - 40 C.F.R. Part 22 ar.d the Virginia Regulations Governing Hazardous Waste
autho ized by EPA pursuant to RCRA Sedtion 3006. 42 U.S.c. § 6926 to the addressees listed
belo . The original and one copy of the domplaint were hand-delivered to the Regional Hearing
Clerk U.S. EPA Region 1lI, 1650 Arch Stteet, Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029.

. .

Mr. J mison Austin
Vice resident and General Manager
Che solv, Inc., formerly trading as
Chel ieals and Solvents. Inc.
1140 ndustry Avenue, S.E.
Roan ke, VA 24013
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Chari s L. Williams, Esq,
Gent ,Locke, Rakes & Moore
800 S Trust Plaza
10 Fr nklin Road
Roan ke, VA 24011

G, Ha is Warner, Jr.
Regis ered Agent for
Austi Holdings-VA, L.L.C.
4648 rambleton Ave" SW
Roan ke, Va. 24018

~/ 0 ivtu//
• I ,

)! ~ A. Howell !

. IS niQr Assistant Regional Counsel
I I '

(/ l'J,S, EPA - Region III !

, 1650 Arch Street I

Phila elphia, PA 19103-2029
!
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